
Date: March 18, 2020 
Time: 6:00 p.m.  
Place:  TELECONFERNCE LOCATION: 

Woodlake Community Center 
            145 North Magnolia 
            Woodlake, CA 93286 
  
 CALL IN OPTION NUMBER: 
 559-564-8055 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. 
Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, including 
auxiliary aids, translation requests, or other accommodations, or to be able to access this 
agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact City Hall at 559-564-8055 at 
least 3 days prior to the meeting.       
 
The full agenda including staff reports and supporting materials are available at City Hall. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME 
  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Planning 
Commission on items within its jurisdiction but not on this agenda.  NOTE:  Prior to 
action by the Planning Commission on any item on this agenda, the public may comment 
on that item.  Unscheduled comments may be limited to 3 minutes.  The City conducts 
business in the English language only.  If you need interpretative services, you will need 
to provide your own. 
 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and non-controversial by 
Planning Commission staff and will be approved by one motion if no member of the 
Planning Commission or public wishes to comment or ask questions.  Items pulled from 
the Calendar will be considered separately. 
 
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS 
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV.A) 
 

A. Action: Approval of Minutes of the regular meeting held on December 18, 
2019  

  



 

V.  ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS   

A. Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-002, Cypress and Kaweah 
Improvements 

B. Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-003, Naranjo Oil Change 
and Carwash 

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-004, N. Palm Multi-
Family Complex 

 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

 A.  Information: Items from Staff 
 B.  Information: Items from Planning Commissioners 
 C.  Request from Planning Commissioners for Future Agenda Items 
 
VII. ADJOURN 

The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 15, 2020 
(if needed) at 6:00 p.m. at City Council Chambers located at 145 North Magnolia, Woodlake, 
CA 93286.  

Planning Commissioners: 
Chuck Mann - Vice Chair 
Johnny Varela 
Xavier Bocanegra  
Michael Navarro 



WOODLAKE PLANNING COMMISSION  MINUTES December 18, 2019 

PRESENT: Commissioners Mann, Navarro & Bocanegra 
OTHERS:   City Employees Lara, Waters and Zacarias 
ABSENT:   Varela 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 PM 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – None 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR –ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Action Items (IV.A) 

A. Action: Approval of Minutes from December 4, 2019.
ON A MOTION BY NAVARRO, SECOND BY BOCANEGERA IT WAS VOTED TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY.

V. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Action: Adoption of Resolution: Recommending Approval of the Woodlake

Reorganization Project to the Woodlake City Council
PUBLIC HEARING
Community Services Director Waters reported the following: The City intends to annex,
amend the land use through a General Plan Amendment, and/or change the zone in five
distinct areas, in and just north of the City of Woodlake. The City is also proposing a
residential development within a portion of the site to be annexed for the construction of
up to 90 residential units.
The City intends to annex, amend the land use through a General Plan Amendment
(GPA), and/or change the zone in five distinct areas, as described below:
Area A
Area A consists of APN 057-060-028 and -029. The City intends to annex the 38-acre
Area A into city limits, change the land use designation from “Agriculture” to “Low
Density Residential”, give it a zone designation of R-1-10 and develop up to 90 single
family units, as described in further detail under “Residential Development”.
Area B
These parcels along Valencia Blvd. are within the city limits and are currently zoned R-1-
7 with a land use designation of “Very Low Density Residential”. These parcels will be
rezoned to RA and the land use will be changed to “Low Density Residential”..
Area C
These parcels are designated as “Very Low Density Residential”. These parcels will be
annexed into the city limits, zoned as RA and re-designated as “Low Density
Residential”.
Area D
This parcel (APN 061-010-015) is currently within the SOI and designated as
“Neighborhood Commercial”. This parcel will be annexed and zoned as Neighborhood
Commercial. The land use designation will not change.
Area E
APN 061-010-016 is within the city limits with a current land use designation of
Neighborhood Commercial, which will remain. The site currently is zoned as R-1-7 and
will be rezoned as Neighborhood Commercial to match the land use designation.
Residential Development
The City is proposing a residential development within Area A for the development of up
to 90 single-family residential units, as demonstrated in the conceptual site plan provided
in Attachment 4. The development will hook up to City water and sewer and includes a
stormwater basin to hold all storm drainage on-site.
The project consists of three separate actions:

General Plan Amendments 1



 
The City is proposing to change the General Plan Land Use designations of Area A, Area B, and 
Area C. 
 
Area APNs Current Land Use Proposed Land Use 
Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029. 
Agriculture Low Density 

Residential 
Area B 061-010-007, 061-

010-017, 061-010-
005, 061-010-004, 
061-010-003, 061-
010-002, 061-010-
019, 061-010-020 

Very Low Density 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-
010-018, 061-010-
010, 061-010-011, 
061-010-012, 061-
010-013, 061-010-
014 

Very Low Density 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 

Area D 061-010-015 Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Neighborhood 
Commercial (No 
Change) 

Area E 061-010-016 Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Neighborhood 
Commercial (No 
Change) 

 
Zoning Amendments 
 
The City is proposing to change the Zoning designations of Area A, Area B, Area C, Area D and 
Area E. 
 
Area APNs Current Zoning Proposed Zoning 
Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029. 
AE- 20 (County) R-1-10 

Area B 061-010-007, 061-
010-017, 061-010-
005, 061-010-004, 
061-010-003, 061-
010-002, 061-010-
019, 061-010-020 

R-1-7 RA 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-
010-018, 061-010-
010, 061-010-011, 
061-010-012, 061-
010-013, 061-010-014 

AE-20 (County) RA 

Area D 061-010-015 AE-20 (County) CN   
Area E 061-010-016 R-1-7 CN 
 
Annexations 
 
The City is proposing to Annex of Area A, Area C and Area D. 
 
Area APNs Current Jurisdiction Proposed Jurisdiction 
Area A 057-060-028, 057-

060-029. 
Tulare County City of Woodlake 2



Area B 061-010-007, 061-
010-017, 061-010-
005, 061-010-004, 
061-010-003, 061-
010-002, 061-010-
019, 061-010-020 

City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 
Change) 

Area C 061-010-008, 061-
010-018, 061-010-
010, 061-010-011, 
061-010-012, 061-
010-013, 061-010-014 

Tulare County City of Woodlake  

Area D 061-010-015 Tulare County City of Woodlake 
Area E 061-010-016 City of Woodlake City of Woodlake (No 

Change) 
 
 A Mitigated Negative Declaration was approved for the project and concluded that no 
 significant environmental impacts will occur as a result of the Project. 

PUBLIC COMMENT OPENED: 6:05 PM 
Jeff Seaward, 20800 Avenue 352 Woodlake – Mr. Seaward asked if the value of his hone 
would increase with the new development.  City Administrator Lara stated yes. 
Harold Liles, 577 Cajon, Woodlake – Mr. Liles asked if his property would be removed 
from the flood zone.  City Administrator Lara stated no. 
PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED 6:17 PM 
ON A MOTION BY NAVARRO, SECOND BY BOCANEGRA IT WAS VOTED 
TO ADOPT THE RESOLUTION RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
WOODLAKE REORGANIZATION PROJECT.  APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Information Items from Staff 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 
As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code sections 54950 et seq., the 
Governing Board may meet in closed session with members of its staff and its attorneys. These 
sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members of the public.  The 
matters the Council will meet on in closed session are identified below or are those matters 
appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate attention and arising after the 
posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in the closed session will be made in 
accordance with Government Code sections 54957.1 
 
“Documents: If distributed to the Council less than 72 hours before a regular meeting, any public 
records which are subject to public inspection and pertain to an open-session item on the regular 
meeting agenda shall be available at the following address at the time they are distributed to a 
majority of the Council: 350 North Valencia Boulevard, Woodlake, California 93286.  Public 
records distributed to the Council at a public meeting will be available to the public at such 
meeting if they were prepared by the City.   
Exemptions and details in Government Code§ 54957.5 (a) shall apply.” 
 
 
 
VIII. ADJOURN 
 

3



The next scheduled Planning Commission meeting TBD at 6:00 p.m. at City Council Chambers 
located at 145 N. Magnolia, Woodlake, CA 93286. 
 
Planning Commissioners: 
Chuck Mann - Chair 
Johnny Varela 
Xavier Bocanegra 
Michael Navarro 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:22 PM 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
 
Irene Zacarias 
Planning Commissioner Secretary 

 
 

4



City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-A  
March 18, 2020 
Prepared by City Staff  

 
SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-002, Cypress and Kaweah Improvements, 
Subject to the Listed Conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plans shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed. Landscaping on Kaweah must match existing and adjacent 
landscaping. 
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-1-7 zoning. 
 
4. Owner must construct curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements on each parcel. Improvements on 
the parcel with the existing home must be constructed concurrently or prior to the issuance of any 
permit on the other proposed homes. 
 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 
requested. 
 
8. A streetlight must be provided on Cypress in a location to be determined by the City engineer. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject site is located on the northeast corner of Cypress and Kaweah. The subject property is 
currently vacant land and one single family home. 
 
The zoning is R-1-7. 
 
Surrounding land uses are as follows:  
 
  North: Single Family Homes 
  South: Schools 
  East: Single Family Homes 
  West: Single Family Homes 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The applicant is proposing to build two single family homes. The applicant has agreed to comply 
with City improvement standards for the construction of the homes. The attached site plan shows the 
location of the lots where the homes will be built. 
 

5



The City is requiring the applicant to meet the conditions found in the resolution as part of the site 
plan.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT: 
 
The proposed activity will comply with CEQA. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Woodlake Planning Commission approve Site Plan 20-002, Cypress and Kaweah 
Improvements, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plans shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed. Landscaping on Kaweah must match existing and adjacent 
landscaping. 
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-1-7 zoning. 
 
4. Owner must construct curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements on each parcel. Improvements on 
the parcel with the existing home must be constructed concurrently or prior to the issuance of any 
permit on the other proposed homes. 
 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 
requested. 
 
8. A streetlight must be provided on Cypress in a location to be determined by the City engineer. 
 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

There is no fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Resolution: Approve Site Plan 20-002, Cypress and Kaweah subject to conditions 
2. attachment No. 1: Site Plan 

6



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
In the matter of: 
 
APPROVING THE SITE PLAN 20-002 ) 
CYPRESS AND KAWEAH     )   Resolution No. 20- 
IMPROVEMENTS         )    
 
Commissioner      offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve Site Plan 
20-002 Cypress and Kaweah Improvements 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to build single family homes on the northeast corner of 
Cypress and Kaweah. 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed request has been processed consistent with Chapter 54, Site Plan 
Review, of the Woodlake Zoning Ordinance, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Site Plan Committee has reviewed the site plan for the proposed buildings and 
has determined that it is consistent with requirements of the R-1-7 zone, and 
 
WHEREAS, upon review of the project the Site Plan Review Committee has recommended 
approval of Site Plan 20-002 subject to conditions to the Planning Commission, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission, after considering all 
the evidence presented, determined the following findings were relevant in evaluating this 
project: 
 
1. The project will meet the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
 2.  The proposed use is consistent with the Woodlake General Plan, Land Use Element. 
 
3.  The project will not have an adverse impact on the health, safety or welfare of the community 
or immediate neighborhood. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby approves Site Plan Permit 
20-002, Cypress and Kaweah Improvements, subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plans shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed. Landscaping on Kaweah must match existing and adjacent 
landscaping. 
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-1-7 zoning. 
 
4. Owner must construct curb, gutter, and sidewalk improvements on each parcel. Improvements 
on the parcel with the existing home must be constructed concurrently or prior to the issuance of 
any permit on the other proposed homes. 

7



 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 
requested. 
 
8. A streetlight must be provided on Cypress in a location to be determined by the City engineer. 
 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Commissioner     , second by 
Commissioner       , at a regular meeting of the Woodlake Planning Commission on the 18th day 
of March 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:    
    
 
____________________ 
Chuck Mann, Vice-Chair 
 
ATTEST:    ______________________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, Planning Commission Secretary                                                   

8



9



10



11



12



13



City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-B  
March 18, 2020 
Prepared by City Staff  

 
SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-003 Naranjo Oil Change and Carwash, 
Subject to the Listed Conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. A grading and drainage plan showing how the storm water will be handled for the site shall be 
provided and approved by the City. Storm drain will connect to City Storm Water System. 
 
3. The building shall comply with the Woodlake DD-X overlay zone.   
 
4. The subject site shall be well maintained by insuring that the landscaping is effectively watered, 
mowed, pruned, fertilized, and weeded; that the signs are properly lighted and painted; that the 
irrigation system is periodically checked to insure against leaks, over spray, and watering times that 
are not conservation effective; and that the parking lot and driveways shall be properly paved and 
stripped.   
 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements including fire sprinklers, if necessary, and 
back flow preventers. 
 
7. The center line on Naranjo Blvd. shall meet Caltrans’ requested location. 
 
8. The applicant shall post “No Parking” signs along Naranjo in a manner that meets the California 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). 
 
9. Streetlight shall be provided on Naranjo Blvd. in locations requested by the City. Streetlights 
along Naranjo shall meet the downtown design standards. 
 
10. Sidewalks along Naranjo shall meet the downtown decorative design standards.  
 
11. All signs shall comply with Woodlake’s sign ordinance and must be approved by the City’s 
design committee. 
 
12.A drive approach shall be added on Naranjo Blvd., in line with Walnut Street.  
 
13. Curb shall be placed between all areas where landscaping abuts paved asphalt. 
 
14. The applicant shall connect to City sewer and water. 
 
15. The applicant shall comply with all comments and recommendations from Caltrans. 

14



 
BACKGROUND 
 
The project is located on the southside of Naranjo Blvd. at the intersection of Walnut Street and 
Naranjo Boulevard between Autozone and Green Bean.  
 
The subject property is currently vacant land. 
 
The current zoning is Service Commercial  
 
Surrounding land uses are as follows:  
 
  North: Walnut Street, Residences  
  South: Vacant Land, Future Residential 
  East: Autozone Commercial Building 
  West: Green Bean Pharm 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The applicant is proposing to build a build an oil change and carwash. The attached site plan shows 
the location of the improvements and the lots. 
 
The City is requiring the applicant to meet the conditions found in the resolution as part of the site 
plan.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT: 
 
If needed, the proposed activity will require that applicant to comply with CEQA. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Woodlake Planning Commission approve Site Plan 20-003, Naranjo Carwash and Oil 
Change, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. A grading and drainage plan showing how the storm water will be handled for the site shall be 
provided and approved by the City. Storm drain will connect to City Storm Water System. 
 
3. The building shall comply with the Woodlake DD-X overlay zone.   
 
4. The subject site shall be well maintained by insuring that the landscaping is effectively watered, 
mowed, pruned, fertilized, and weeded; that the signs are properly lighted and painted; that the 
irrigation system is periodically checked to insure against leaks, over spray, and watering times that 
are not conservation effective; and that the parking lot and driveways shall be properly paved and 
stripped.   
 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements including fire sprinklers, if necessary, and 

15



back flow preventers. 
 
7. The center line on Naranjo Blvd. shall meet Caltrans’ requested location. 
 
8. The applicant shall post “No Parking” signs along Naranjo in a manner that meets the California 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). 
 
9. Streetlight shall be provided on Naranjo Blvd. in locations requested by the City. Streetlights 
along Naranjo shall meet the downtown design standards. 
 
10. Sidewalks along Naranjo shall meet the downtown decorative design standards.  
 
11. All signs shall comply with Woodlake’s sign ordinance and must be approved by the City’s 
design committee. 
 
12.A drive approach shall be added on Naranjo Blvd., in line with Walnut Street.  
 
13. Curb shall be placed between all areas where landscaping abuts paved asphalt. 
 
14. The applicant shall connect to City sewer and water. 
 
15. The applicant shall comply with all comments and recommendations from Caltrans. 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
There is no fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Resolution: Approve Site Plan 20-003, Naranjo Carwash and Oil Change, subject to 
conditions 

2. Attachment No. 1 -: Site Plan  

16



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
In the matter of: 
 
APPROVING THE SITE   ) 
PLAN 20-003 NARANJO  )    Resolution No. 20- 
OIL CHANGE AND CARWASH   )         
 
Commissioner      offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve Site Plan 
20-003 Naranjo Oil Change and Carwash 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to build an oil change and carwash  on the southside  of 
Naranjo Blvd. at the intersection of Walnut Street and Naranjo Boulevard; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed request has been processed consistent with Chapter 54, Site Plan 
Review, of the Woodlake Zoning Ordinance, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Site Plan Committee has reviewed the site plan for the proposed buildings and 
has determined that it is consistent with requirements of the Service Commercial zone, and 
 
WHEREAS, upon review of the project the Site Plan Review Committee has recommended 
approval of Site Plan 20-003 subject to conditions to the Planning Commission, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission, after considering all 
the evidence presented, determined the following findings were relevant in evaluating this 
project: 
 
1. The project will meet the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
 2.  The proposed use is consistent with the Woodlake General Plan, Land Use Element. 
 
3.  The project will not have an adverse impact on the health, safety or welfare of the community 
or immediate neighborhood. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby approves Approve Site 
Plan 20-003 Naranjo Oil Change and Carwash, subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. A grading and drainage plan showing how the storm water will be handled for the site shall be 
provided and approved by the City. Storm drain will connect to City Storm Water System. 
 
3. The building shall comply with the Woodlake DD-X overlay zone.   
 
4. The subject site shall be well maintained by insuring that the landscaping is effectively 
watered, mowed, pruned, fertilized, and weeded; that the signs are properly lighted and painted; 
that the irrigation system is periodically checked to insure against leaks, over spray, and watering 

17



times that are not conservation effective; and that the parking lot and driveways shall be properly 
paved and stripped.   
 
5. All improvements shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements including fire sprinklers, if necessary, 
and back flow preventers. 
 
7. The center line on Naranjo Blvd. shall meet Caltrans’ requested location. 
 
8. The applicant shall post “No Parking” signs along Naranjo in a manner that meets the 
California Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (CA MUTCD). 
 
9. Streetlight shall be provided on Naranjo Blvd. in locations requested by the City. Streetlights 
along Naranjo shall meet the downtown design standards. 
 
10. Sidewalks along Naranjo shall meet the downtown decorative design standards.  
 
11. All signs shall comply with Woodlake’s sign ordinance and must be approved by the City’s 
design committee. 
 
12.A drive approach shall be added on Naranjo Blvd., in line with Walnut Street.  
 
13. Curb shall be placed between all areas where landscaping abuts paved asphalt. 
 
14. The applicant shall connect to City sewer and water. 
 
15. The applicant shall comply with all comments and recommendations from Caltrans 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Commissioner          second by 
Commissioner        , at a regular meeting of the Woodlake Planning Commission on the 18th day 
of March 2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:    
    
 
____________________ 
Chuck Mann, Vice-Chair 
 
ATTEST:    ______________________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, Planning Commission Secretary                                                   

18



EST. LOCATION OF
EX. STORM DRAIN PIPE

STORAGE

BAY 1
 PICKUP TRUCK

W/TRAILER

BAY  2
PICKUP TRUCK

W/TRAILER

BAY 3
PICKUP TRUCK

W/TRAILER

BAY 4
PICKUP TRUCK

W/TRAILER

9' PARKING

6' BIKE LANE

12' EASTBOUND LANE

A
D

A
 P

A
TH

 
O

F 
TR

A
V

EL

OFFICE /
STORAGE

ADA PATH
OF TRAVEL

LANDSCAPE

LANDSCAPE LANDSCAPE

LA
ND

SC
AP

E

LA
ND

SC
AP

E

EST. LOCATION
OF EX. SDMH

ILINE OF SIGHT TO WEST 500' IN LENGTH
ALL ITEMS TO BE CLEAR FROM FACE

OF CURB TO LINE OF SIGHT LINE

INSTALL  DUMPSTER PAD
PER CITY VISALIA R-4

14' DECORATIVE
SIDEWALK

INSTALL 7' TALL BLOCK WALL
ALONG SOUTH
PROPERTY LINE

EXT. MONUMENT SIGN

EST. LOCATION OF EX.
STORM DRAIN PIPE

EST. LOCATION OF
EX. STORM DRAIN PIPE

(6) 10x18 EACH
ONSITE VEHICLE
STAGING FOR SERVICE

NEW TREE WELL

AIR / VACUUM
CENTER

1 ADA PARKING SPACES

5 EA PARKING SPACES

NEW CITY STREETLIGHT

1 EA PARKING SPACES

EX CITY STREETLIGHT

16' 16' 16' 16' 16'24'

30
.17

'

50
'

42
'

13.2'

40
.83

'

20' 16.9'16.9'

80'

5'

15'

INSTALL 45' WIDE DRIVEWAY PER CALTRANS
DRIVEWAY DETAIL 3 EA (15' WIDE LANES)

R20'

R10'

WEST NARANJO BLVD (SR 216)

N
O

RT
H 

W
A

LN
UT

 S
TR

EE
T

W/V

EX CITY STREETLIGHT

15' SETBACK

10' SETBACK

R15'

R15'

R2
0'

R25'

R20'

R30'

R10'

5'

5'

15'

12'18'

10'

66.72'

28'

9'
6'

12.5'
14.5'

10'
11.5'

1.0' 16'

53'
25'

48.95'

2.5'

PROPERTY LINE

12
.80

'

50'

50'

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LIN

E

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LIN

E
(E

) B
LO

CK
 W

AL
L

PARALLEL PARKING STRIP
9x20 CITY STD.

NO PARKING

A
V

(2) 12'x52'
TRUCK TRAILER PARKING

R50'

R5'

R2'

24
'

20'

SCALE = N.T.ST.I = 5.0 R-VALUE = 5

DETAIL "A"

T.I = 6.5 R-VALUE =5

DETAIL "B"

SCALE = N.T.S

2" A.C.

12" A.B COMPACTED SUBGRADE
@90% REL. COMPACTION

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
@ 95% REL. COMPACTION

4" A.C.

15" A.B COMPACTED SUBGRADE
@90% REL. COMPACTION

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
@ 90% REL. COMPACTION

PROPOSED CALTRANS
STD. A87A CURB & GUTTER

PROPOSED 14.5' SIDEWALK
PER CALTRANS STANDARDS

W. NARANJO BLVD.
(SR 216)

LOOKING EAST

1.5%

EXIST.
CURB & GUTTER

EXIST. 4.5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 42' R/W42' FUTURE R/W

±4'

15'

84.0'
R/W R/W

SEC. 
LINE

±12.5' OF .2' COLD
PLANE AND OVERLAY

EXIST. R/W VARIES:
25' WEST OF CYPRESS
40' EAST OF CYPRESS

25' EXIST. R/W

VARIES 1.8%-2.8%

PAVE OUT

SAW CUT

11'

27'

±28'

EXIST.
PAVEMENT

VARIES

VARIES
2.7'-3.5'

CLEXIST.
VARIES

±24' - ±24.8

16'

LEGEND:

724 N. BEN MADDOX

(559) 967-8089
WAY SUITE "A"

N

No. 64742
Exp. 6/30/21

19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
R E V I S I O N S

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW CAR WASH FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
19226

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAWII

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
Jesse Allen Williams R.C.E. 64742

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" =  

AutoCAD SHX Text
-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20



City of Woodlake 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-C  
March 18, 2020 
Prepared by City Staff  

 
SUBJECT:  

 
Action: Adoption of Resolution:  Approve Site Plan 20-004 and Variance 20-001, North Palm 
Multifamily Complex, Subject to the Listed Conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-3 zoning. 
 
4. Owner must construct sidewalk improvements on the parcel.  
 
5. All improvements and buildings shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 
requested. 
 
7. A trash enclosure must be provided. 
 
8. Fencing should comply with city improvement standards and must be consistent with R-3 design 
standards including wrought iron fencing along Palm.  Prior to installation, the City will approve 
fencing materials and locations. 
 
9. A lighting plan showing the location of lights in the proposed parking area and in the complex 
must be provided. 
 
10. New and existing structures must have similar design features and must complement each other. 
 
11. ADA parking spots must provide access to ADA vans. 
 
12. Building elevations must be provided prior to the issuance of permits. 
 
13. Pedestrian access must be available from the alley. 
 
14. Parking should be reconfigured to allow for spots to face north and south, instead of east. A 
smaller drive approach would be required with this reconfiguration. 
 
15. Fire sprinklers must be installed in all units, including the existing multifamily unit. 
 
 
 
 

20



 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The subject site is located on North Palm between Lakeview and Antelope Avenues. The subject 
property is currently vacant land and with one apartment building. 
 
The zoning is RM-3. 
 
Surrounding land uses are as follows:  
 
  North: Single Family Homes 
  South: Single Family Homes 
  East: Commercial Businesses/Woodlake Downtown 
  West: Single Family Homes 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The applicant is proposing to build two multifamily units and repair an existing multifamily unit. 
The project also includes the construction of sidewalks within the complex, a parking lot, fencing, a 
drive approach, and lighting.  
 
The project also needs a variance because it does not meet setback requirements between buildings 
(10 feet) and between the rear property line (15 feet). As proposed, there is a 6-foot setback between 
the buildings and a 7-foot setback from the rear property line. As a conditional of approval of the 
variance, the City is requiring fire sprinklers in the existing unit. 
 
The City is requiring the applicant to meet the conditions found in the resolution as part of the site 
plan.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT: 
 
The proposed activity will comply with CEQA. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Woodlake Planning Commission approve Site Plan 20-004, North Palm Multifamily 
Complex and Variance 20-001 subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-3 zoning. 
 
4. Owner must construct sidewalk improvements on the parcel.  
 
5. All improvements and buildings shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 

21



requested. 
 
7. A trash enclosure must be provided. 
 
8. Fencing should comply with city improvement standards and must be consistent with R-3 design 
standards including wrought iron fencing along Palm.  Prior to installation, the City will approve 
fencing materials and locations. 
 
9. A lighting plan showing the location of lights in the proposed parking area and in the complex 
must be provided. 
 
10. New and existing structures must have similar design features and must complement each other. 
 
11. ADA parking spots must provide access to ADA vans. 
 
12. Building elevations must be provided prior to the issuance of permits. 
 
13. Pedestrian access must be available from the alley. 
 
14. Parking should be reconfigured to allow for spots to face north and south, instead of east. A 
smaller drive approach would be required with this reconfiguration. 
 
15. Fire sprinklers must be installed in all units, including the existing multifamily unit. 
 

 FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

There is no fiscal impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Resolution: Approve Site Plan 20-004, North Palm Multifamily subject to conditions 
2. Attachment No. 1: North Palm Multifamily Units 

22



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF WOODLAKE 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
In the matter of: 
 
APPROVING THE SITE PLAN 20-004 ) 
NORTH PALM MULTIFAMILY  )   Resolution No. 20- 
COMPLEX & VARIANCE 20-001  )    
 
Commissioner      offered the following resolution and moved its adoption. Approve Site Plan 
20-004 North Palm Multifamily Complex and Variance 20-001. 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant is proposing to build a multifamily complex on North Palm between 
Lakeview and Antelope Avenues; and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed request has been processed consistent with Chapter 54, Site Plan 
Review, of the Woodlake Zoning Ordinance, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Site Plan Committee has reviewed the site plan for the proposed buildings and 
has determined that it is consistent with requirements of the RM-3 zone, and 
 
WHEREAS, a Variance is needed because the proposed project does not meet rear setbacks or 
setback requirements between buildings, and 
 
WHEREAS, upon review of the project the Site Plan Review Committee has recommended 
approval of Site Plan 20-004 subject to conditions to the Planning Commission, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission, after considering all 
the evidence presented, determined the following findings were relevant in evaluating this 
project: 
 
1. The project will meet the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

 
 2.  The proposed use is consistent with the Woodlake General Plan, Land Use Element. 
 
3.  The project will not have an adverse impact on the health, safety or welfare of the community 
or immediate neighborhood. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby approves Site Plan Permit 
20-004, North Palm Multifamily Complex and Variance 20-001, subject to the following 
conditions. 
 
1. A landscaping and irrigation plan shall be provided and approved by the City. MWELO 
requirements shall be followed.  
 
2. Properties must connect to City water and sewer services 
 
3. The buildings and improvements shall comply with R-3 zoning. 
 

23



4. Owner must construct sidewalk improvements on the parcel.  
 
5. All improvements and buildings shall meet ADA compliance. 
 
6. All buildings shall meet current fire code requirements, including hydrant installation, if 
requested. 
 
7. A trash enclosure must be provided. 
 
8. Fencing should comply with city improvement standards and must be consistent with R-3 
design standards including wrought iron fencing along Palm Streets.  Prior to installation, the 
City will approve fencing materials and locations. 
 
9. A lighting plan showing the location of lights in the proposed parking area and in the complex 
must be provided. 
 
10. New and existing structures must have similar design features and must complement each 
other. 
 
11. ADA parking spots must provide access to ADA vans. 
 
12. Building elevations must be provided prior to the issuance of permits. 
 
13. Pedestrian access must be available from the alley. 
 
14. Parking should be reconfigured to allow for spots to face north and south, instead of east. A 
smaller drive approach would be required with this reconfiguration. 
 
15. Fire sprinklers must be installed in all units, including the existing multifamily unit. 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted upon a motion of Commissioner    , second by 
Commissioner     , at a regular meeting of the Woodlake Planning Commission on the 18th day of 
March  2020, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:    
    
 
____________________ 
Chuck Mann, Vice-Chair 
 
ATTEST:    ______________________________________ 

Irene Zacarias, Planning Commission Secretary                                                   

24



N.
 P

AL
M

 S
T.

GRASS PLAY AREA

PROPOSED DUPLEX

(E) DUPLEX

(E)

10' - 0"

(E
)

5
' -

 9
"

(E
) 
A
LL

EY
W

A
Y

GRASS AREA (TYP.)GRASS AREA (TYP.)

ACCESSIBLE PARKING 
STALL & LOADING AREA 

(N) CONC. SIDEWALK

(N) CURB & DRIVE APPROACH

C
EN

TE
RL

IN
E 

O
F 

S
TR

EE
T

9
' -

 0
"

8
' -

 6
"

8
' -

 6
"

8
' -

 6
"

8
' -

 6
"

5
' -

 0
"

9
' -

 0
"

9
' -

 0
"

9
' -

 0
"

5' - 6" 20' - 0" 14' - 6"

7' - 0 5/8" 44' - 0" 5' - 0" 44' - 0" 39' - 11 1/8"

WALK

5' - 0" 2' - 0" 18' - 0"

5
' -

 0
"

3
0
' -

 0
"

6
' -

 6
".

(E
)

2
7
' -

 9
"

(E
)

5
' -

 9
"

CONC. WALK (TYP.)

PARKING 
8 STALLS

(E) POWER POLE

PROPOSED DUPLEX

(N
) 
6

' H
. 
C

M
U
 W

AL
L

(N
) 
6

' H
. 
C

M
U
 W

AL
L

G
A
TE

6
' -

 0
"

140.00' PROPERTY LINE

140.00' PROPERTY LINE

7
5

.0
0

' P
R
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

7
5

.0
0

' P
R
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

N
EW

 D
R
IV

E 
A
PP

RO
A
C
H

PICNIC TABLES & 
PORTABLE BBQ

Sh
ee

t T
itle

:

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

:

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

30
83

3 
Av

e.
 3

22
 U

nit
 A

W
oo

dla
ke

, C
A 

93
28

6
(5

59
) 3

03
-9

12
1

QU
AL

ITY
 B

UI
LD

ER
S 

GE
NE

RA
L 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N 

IN
C.

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

3
/9

/2
0
2
0
 1

2
:1

9
:3

9
 A

M
C
:\U

se
rs

\C
ar

lo
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

D
ra

w
in

gs
\J
-C

er
va

nt
es

\A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

\J
.C

 -
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

.r
vt

A100

S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 B

U
IL

D
ER

S
C

O
N
S
TR

U
S
C

TI
O

N
 IN

C
.

3
/7

/2
0

2
0

20-0101

A

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

 F
or

:

W
O

O
D

LA
KE

, 
C

A
LI

F.

1/8" = 1'-0"SITE PLAN NORTH

LOT DESCRIPTION

A.P.N. 060-104-002

ADDRESS: 278 N. PALM ST.

LOCATION: WOODLAKE, CA

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: "D"

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
• NEW WOOD FRAMED APARTMENT COMPLEX 

UTILITIES
ELECTRICAL S.C.E.
WATER City of Woodlake
WASTE City of Woodlake
GAS City of Woodlake

SHEET INDEX

Sht No. Sheet Name

A100 SITE PLAN
A200 FLOOR PLAN
A300 EXTERIORS278 N. PALM STREET

25



WALL LEGEND
2x6 D.F. # 2 OR BTR W/ R-21 BATT 
INSULATION @ EXTERIOR WALLS & R5.0 RIGID 
FOAM @ EXPOSED WALLS (TYP.)

2x4 D.F. # 2 OR BTR INTERIOR WALLS

UNIT 1 1,036 SQ. FT. CONDITIONED

UNIT 2 1,036 SQ. FT. CONDITIONED

UNIT 3 1,036 SQ. FT. CONDITIONED

UNIT 4 1,036 SQ. FT. CONDITIONED

4,144 TOTAL CONDITIONED SPACE

SQUARE FOOTAGE TABULATION

STOVE w/ HOOD 
& V.T.R.

BASE 
CABINET

PRE-FAB FIBERGLASS 
TUB/SHOWER UNIT W/ NON-
ABSORBENT MATERIAL TO +
80" ABV. FINISH FLOOR

LINEN

REF. W/ D.C.W.
W/ RECESSED BOX

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2 LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN
BATH

W.I.C.

HALL

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM 2
LIVING ROOM

BATH
W.I.C.

HALL

M. BATH
UPPERS

DBL. SINK 
w/ G. DISP.

HARD SURFACE 
COUNTER TOPS

KITCHEN

GAS STUB w/ QUICK 
SHUT OFF VALVE

TILE

CARPET

TILE TILE

DINING
TILE

CARPET

CARPET

CARPET

PRE-FAB FIBERGLASS 
SHOWER UNIT W/ NON-
ABSORBENT MATERIAL TO +
80" ABV. FINISH FLOOR

HARD SURFACE 
COUNTER TOPS

2
8
"

2
8
"

32"

34"

2
8
"

2
8
"

36"

SOLID CORE DOOR

W/D

40' - 0" 13' - 0" 40' - 0"

3
0
' -

 0
"

93' - 0"

3
0
' -

 0
"

14' - 0" 8' - 9" 4' - 0" 13' - 3"

4
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 0
"

1
4
' -

 4
"

7
' -

 8
"

5' - 6" 8' - 8" 9' - 0" 20' - 10" 5' - 0"

9
' -

 0
"

1
7
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 0
"

1' - 4"

1
' -

 4
"

1
' -

 4
"

1' - 4"

BALCONY ABOVE

Sh
ee

t T
itle

:

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

:

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

30
83

3 
Av

e.
 3

22
 U

nit
 A

W
oo

dla
ke

, C
A 

93
28

6
(5

59
) 3

03
-9

12
1

QU
AL

ITY
 B

UI
LD

ER
S 

GE
NE

RA
L 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N 

IN
C.

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

3
/9

/2
0
2
0
 1

2
:1

9
:4

2
 A

M
C
:\U

se
rs

\C
ar

lo
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

D
ra

w
in

gs
\J
-C

er
va

nt
es

\A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

\J
.C

 -
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

.r
vt

A200

FL
O

O
R
 P

LA
N

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 B

U
IL

D
ER

S
C

O
N
S
TR

U
S
C

TI
O

N
 IN

C
.

3
/7

/2
0

2
0

20-0101

A

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

 F
or

:

W
O

O
D

LA
KE

, 
C

A
LI

F.

NORTH

TOTAL SQ. FOOTAGE: 4,144 Sq. Ft

1/4" = 1'-0"FLOOR PLAN

26



Finish Floor
0"

Finish Floor 2
9' - 0"

Top Plate 2
17' - 0 3/4"

Finish Floor
0"

Finish Floor 2
9' - 0"

Top Plate 2
17' - 0 3/4"

Finish Floor
0"

Finish Floor 2
9' - 0"

Top Plate 2
17' - 0 3/4"

METAL 
ROOFING (TYP.)

HORIZ. WOOD SIDING (TYP.)

CABLE RAILING (TYP.)

SMOOTH FIN. 
PLASTER (TYP.)

G.I. GUTTER & 
DOWNSPOUTS

VINYL WINDOWS

2x8 FASCIA 
BRD. (TYP.)

G.I. WEEP SCREED

6' H. CMU WALL

Finish Floor
0"

Finish Floor 2
9' - 0"

Top Plate 2
17' - 0 3/4"

Sh
ee

t T
itle

:

PROJECT NO.

DRAWING

PL
O

T 
D

A
TE

:

R
ev

.
D

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

30
83

3 
Av

e.
 3

22
 U

nit
 A

W
oo

dla
ke

, C
A 

93
28

6
(5

59
) 3

03
-9

12
1

QU
AL

ITY
 B

UI
LD

ER
S 

GE
NE

RA
L 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N 

IN
C.

C
LI

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

3
/9

/2
0
2
0
 1

2
:1

9
:4

6
 A

M
C
:\U

se
rs

\C
ar

lo
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

D
ra

w
in

gs
\J
-C

er
va

nt
es

\A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

\J
.C

 -
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

.r
vt

A300

EX
TE

R
IO

R
S

Q
U

A
LI

TY
 B

U
IL

D
ER

S
C

O
N
S
TR

U
S
C

TI
O

N
 IN

C
.

3
/7

/2
0

2
0

20-0101

A

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
pa

rt
m

en
t 

C
om

pl
ex

 F
or

:

W
O

O
D

LA
KE

, 
C

A
LI

F.3/16" = 1'-0"WEST ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"EAST ELEVATION3/16" = 1'-0"SOUTH ELEVATION

3/16" = 1'-0"NORTH ELEVATION

27


	PC MINUTES  12_18_19.pdf
	WOODLAKE PLANNING COMMISSION      MINUTES  December 18, 2019
	PRESENT: Commissioners Mann, Navarro & Bocanegra
	OTHERS:   City Employees Lara, Waters and Zacarias
	ABSENT:   Varela
	MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 PM

	Item V.A Cypress and Kaweah Improvements Agenda.pdf
	March 18, 2020
	Prepared by City Staff

	Item V.B Agenda- Naranjo Oil Change & Carwash.pdf
	March 18, 2020
	Prepared by City Staff

	Item V.C Attahcecment No. 1 - Palm Multi Family  Units.pdf
	Sheets
	A100 - SITE PLAN
	A200 - FLOOR PLAN
	A300 - EXTERIORS


	Item V.C N Palm Multifamily.pdf
	March 18, 2020
	Prepared by City Staff




